
Two agricultural heavyweights:  
the European Union  
and United States 
i n  comparat ive  perspect ive



2 / Two agriculTural heavyweighTs: The european union and uniTed sTaTes in comparaTive perspecTive

the need to minimize environmental impacts 
and to address climate challenges.

Despite these many similarities, there 
are also important differences in farm 
structures, production and scale. This brief 
compares and contrasts U.S. and EU farming 
and trade along a number of dimensions. It 
describes the key similarities and differences 

The United States and European Union 
are both major agri-food producers and 
exporters on the global stage. They also 
have a close trade relationship. Farmers 
in both regions are early adopters of new 
technologies and operate at a high level of 
technical efficiency. Farmers in both regions 
also share similar challenges: volatile 
markets, the battle with pests and diseases, 

in agriculture on both sides of the Atlantic 
with a view to a better understanding of 
the farming context in both regions. It also 
compares the steps farmers are taking to 
lower their environmental footprint and to 
improve their sustainability.

Note: In this brief, EU28 is used to describe data encompassing 
the United Kingdom, which was a member of the European Union 
until 31 January 2020.

Two agricultural heavyweights: 
the European Union and United States 
in comparative perspective
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Comparing 
Agricultural 
Characteristics

Of which (%):

Sources:
USDA, Eurostat.

(1) 2018, (2) 2017.

The U.S. has considerably more agricultural land than the 

EU, although the EU has a higher value of agricultural 

production. This reflects a greater share of cropland in 

the EU and a greater share of pastureland in the U.S. 

(Table 1A).

Crop production contributes slightly more than animal 

production to total commodity output in value terms 

in both regions (53% in the U.S. and 58% in the EU). 

However, there are differences in what farmers produce. 

U.S. crop farmers are more specialized in the production 

of cereals and oilseeds, while the production of fruits 

and vegetables is relatively more important for crop 

farmers in the EU. EU livestock farmers are more focused 

on milk production whereas beef production is relatively 

more important in the U.S. Also, in the U.S., poultry/eggs 

production is more important, whereas pig production 

plays a greater role in the EU (Table 1B).

TOTAL VALUE of 
agricultural commodity 
production

370 Billion USD

433 Billion USD

Share of cropland

United States
Agricultural Land

797(1)

million acres 

European Union
Agricultural Land

400(2)

million acres 

U.S. and EU
agricultural sectors compared: 

Commodity Shares
average 2018-2020

U.S. and EU
agricultural sectors 
compared: Land Use

TaBle 1B

TaBle 1a

12.4% 19.5%

5.8% 10.1%

11.0% 7.6%

10.5% 14.3%

17.6% 7.5%

13.4% 26.0%

10.5% 2.7%

18.9% 12.3%

OTHERS

HOGS

POULTRY, 
EGGS

MILK

CATTLE

FRUITS, 
VEGETABLES, 

 NUTS

OILSEEDS

CEREALS

49.7%
68.7%

Share of pastureland
50.3%
31.0%
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Digging behind these numbers highlights some important 

contrasts. The U.S. has a larger area under crops than the 

EU, in line with its larger agricultural area (Table 2). 

The U.S. cropland area is dominated by corn and 

soybeans, followed by wheat. In the EU, wheat and other 

cereals (mainly barley) are the dominant crops, followed 

by corn. The use of maize for silage is relatively more 

widespread in the EU. While soybean is by far the most 

important oilseed in the U.S., the EU is a minor producer 

of soybeans, but in contrast has a much greater acreage 

under rapeseed and sunflower. 

Among the minor crops, the EU has a larger area under 

sugar beet, grapes and almonds, while the U.S. has a 

larger area under rice and cotton. In the case of almonds, 

despite the smaller area, the U.S. is a vastly more 

significant producer.

in the EU while beef production is greater in the U.S. 

Although the U.S. has less than half the number of dairy 

cows compared to the EU, it produces two-thirds of 

the volume of milk, indicating that yields per cow are 

higher in the U.S. The higher proportion of dairy cows 

also means that a significant proportion of EU beef 

production is sourced from the dairy herd rather than 

the beef herd. The EU has a much larger inventory of 

breeding pigs and particularly breeding sheep, while the 

U.S. has a greater output of chicken broilers annually.

There are also differences in livestock inventories (Table 

3). The U.S. has more cattle, and the U.S. herd is strongly 

skewed in favor of beef cows while the EU herd consists 

mainly of dairy cows. These inventory numbers are 

reflected in production, where milk production is greater 

TaBle 2

TaBle 3

Comparison of U.S. and EU crop production,  
area (million acres) and quantities (million tons)

2020

Comparison of livestock inventories in the U.S. and EU
2020

 ALL CATTLE, DAIRY COWS, BEEF COWS HOG NUMBERS, BREEDING SHEEP NUMBERS, BREEDING BROILERS PRODUCED,
 BEEF RAW MILK  PORK PIGS MUTTON, LAMB SHEEP CHICKEN MEAT

 93,595 9,440 31,158 77,502 6,276 5,170 3,780 9,222,100
 76,245 20,300 10,796 146,110 11,273 62,054 N/A 6,422,775

 12,379 101,015 N/A 12,543 N/A 65 N/A 20,255
 7,123 154,900 N/A 23,290 N/A 662 N/A 13,682

 UNITED STATES EUROPEAN UNION

PRODUCT AREA PRODUCTION AREA PRODUCTION

TOTAL CROPLAND 323.0  274.5

WHEAT 44.3 49.7 59.8 125.3

CORN 90.8 360.3 22.0 65.2

OTHER CEREALS 14.0 15.2 42.2 87.4

RICE (MILLED) 3.0 10.3 1.0 2.8

SOYBEANS 83.1 112.5 2.4 2.6

RAPESEED/CANOLA 1.8 1.6 12.6 16.1

SUNFLOWER 1.7 1.4 10.7 8.7

SUGAR, BEET, CANE 2.1 62.7 3.8 100.0

COTTON 12.1 3.3 0.9 0.4

GRAPES, WINE (MILLION HL) 1.1 23.9 7.8 158.0

VEGETABLES 6.7 61.1 5.2 62.2

FRUITS, TREE NUTS 4.9 25.8 8.1 35.8

ALMONDS (SHELLED) 1.2 1.9 2.0 0.5

Notes: 
U.S. wine data from 2018; data for vegetables and almonds from 

2019. U.S. total cropland figure from 2017, the EU figure from 2018.

Sources: 
USDA, European Commission, Eurostat, FAOSTAT, OIV.

Sources: USDA, European Commission, Eurostat and FAOSTAT.

NUMBERS

(‘000 HEADS)

PRODUCTION

(‘000 TONS)
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These differences in primary commodity outputs and 

livestock inventories are reflected in the differences in 

the production and exports of processed agricultural 

commodities (Table 4). Much larger shares of U.S. corn 

and rice production are exported compared to the EU. 

Because a large share of EU wheat production goes for 

domestic feed use, U.S. wheat exports are very similar 

to EU wheat exports despite much larger EU wheat 

production. The U.S. is a larger producer of oilseeds and 

oilseed meals than is the EU, but the EU produces and 

exports a larger volume of vegetable oils. The EU also 

has a much larger production and exports of olive oil, 

sugar and wine.

The fact that the EU is a larger producer of milk than 

the U.S. is reflected in its production and export of 

processed dairy products, including butter, milk powders 

and cheese. The U.S. is a larger producer and exporter of 

beef and poultry meat, reflecting its larger inventories of 

these livestock. However, the EU is a larger producer and 

exporter of pig meat.

Net farm income trends in the two regions are shown 

in Figure 1. These reflect differences in the level and 

composition of output, in the exchange rates used to 

make the comparison, as well as differences in the 

volume of farm policy support over time. Farm income in 

the EU is generally higher than in the U.S. although the 

gap in some years (2013) is very narrow and preliminary 

estimates for 2020 suggest higher U.S. farm income in 

that year. U.S. farm income has also been more volatile 

than farm income in the EU. U.S. farm income recovered 

more strongly from the slump in 2009 following the 

financial crisis of the previous year but also fell more 

sharply following the record year in 2013. U.S. farm 

incomes have recovered strongly since 2016 while 

the recovery in EU farm incomes was more modest in 

those years. The increase in U.S. net farm income in 

2020 is primarily due to a substantial increase in direct 

government payments to a record $46.5 billion in 2020.

TaBle 4

Figure 1

U.S. and EU production and export of agricultural  
and processed agri-food products, ‘000 tons

2020

U.S. and EU net farm income
2005-2020

Note:
U.S. wine production and export data are for 2018.

Sources:
USDA, European Commission,  

International Organisation of Vine and Wine.

Note: EU figures converted to USD using average EUR/USD exchange rate in each year. U.S. figure is net farm income. EU figure is agricultural entrepreneurial income. Sources: USDA, Eurostat.

UNITED STATES
EUROPEAN UNION

 UNITED STATES EUROPEAN UNION

PRODUCT  PRODUCTION EXPORTS PRODUCTION EXPORTS

WHEAT 49,691 26,807 125,200 27,600

CORN 360,252 67,948 65,200 2,500

RICE (MILLED) 7,226 2,889 1,700 500

OLIVE OIL  16 10 2,107 820

VEGETABLE OILS 13,003 1,339 15,800 2,400

OILSEEDS 49,476  13,188  27,500 600

OILSEED MEALS 122,421 63,165 29,100 1,800

SUGAR (REFINED) 8,166 32 14,400 800

WINE (MILLION HL) 24  4  159 30

BUTTER  959 26 2,366 306

CHEESE 6,000 359 10,244 1,401

SKIMMED MILK POWDER 1,141 820 1,515 830

WHOLE MILK POWDER 72 36 729 345

MEAT, CATTLE 12,379 1,341 7,123 587

MEAT, CHICKEN 20,255 3,378 13,681 2,324

MEAT, PIG 12,843 3,303 23,290 4,930
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Figure 2

Producer support in the U.S. and EU28
1986-2018

Producer support, as measured by the OECD 

Producer Support Estimate (PSE) indicator, has been 

falling in both the U.S. and EU as a share of gross 

farm receipts, including budgetary support. The 

overall share of support in the EU has always been 

higher than in the U.S. In both regions, the relative 

importance of farm support in total farm receipts has 

stabilized in recent years, and has even increased in 

the U.S.

measure of the shift of EU agricultural policy in a more 

market-oriented direction over this period (Figure 2). 

Recent years have seen a small increase in producer 

price support in the U.S. such that the level of market 

price support in the two regions is now equivalent.

Comparing the structure of farm support based on 

OECD categories, some differences are immediately 

obvious. Forty percent of EU support now takes 

the form of decoupled payments (payments based 

on non-current area, animals, revenue or income, 

production not required) compared to just 7% in the 

U.S. U.S. farmers receive a greater share of their farm 

support in the form of market price support (mainly 

for milk, sugar and cotton), payments linked to current 

revenue or income (such as crop insurance or, more 

recently, the Market Facilitation Program), and on-

farm services (including on-farm animal and plant 

health inspection and technical assistance). 

producer prices, as is also the case in the U.S., are now 

broadly in line with world market prices. The difference 

between the mid-1980s, when EU producer prices 

were 70-80% above world market prices and today, 

when the difference is around 5%, is striking and a 

The Nominal Protection Coefficient is a measure of 

the extent to which domestic producer prices differ 

from world prices. A producer NPC of 1.2 for a country 

indicates that domestic producer prices are on average 

20% above world prices for the same commodities. EU 

Note:  
The Producer Support Estimate (PSE) is an indicator of the annual 
monetary value of gross transfers from consumers and taxpayers 

to support agricultural producers, measured at farm gate level, arising 
from policy measures, regardless of their nature, objectives or impacts 

on farm production or income. The percentage PSE is the ratio of the 
PSE to the value of total gross farm receipts. The nominal protection 

coefficient (NPC) shows the difference between domestic and world 
market producer prices due to government support policies. A ratio 

of 1.0 implies no support, whereas a ratio greater than 1.0 signifies 
domestic market protection provided to agricultural producers.

Source: OECD.

Source: OECD.
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Figure 2a

Structure of farm supports in U.S. and EU28
Average 2017-2019

u.s.
27%

7%

4%

3% 7%

5%

11%

36%

eu28

17%

6%

5%

40%

1%
1% 2%

28%

PAYMENTS BASED ON CURRENT AREA, ANIMALS, 
REVENUE OR INCOME, PRODUCTION REQUIRED

PAYMENTS BASED ON NON-COMMODITY CRITERIA
OTHER PAYMENTS

PAYMENTS BASED ON NON-CURRENT AREA, ANIMALS, 
REVENUE OR INCOME, PRODUCTION NOT REQUIREDMARKET PRICE SUPPORT

VARIABLE INPUT
INVESTMENT SUBSIDY
ON-FARM SERVICES
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EU farm income is divided among a much larger 

number of farms (Table 5). There are 10.3 million 

farm holdings in the EU, compared to 2.0 million 

farms in the U.S. Given that the U.S. utilized 

agricultural area is over twice the EU area, this means 

that U.S. farms are on average almost 10 times larger 

than EU farms. 

The vast majority of EU farms (94%) are under 50 

acres in size, though they manage only 34% of EU 

farmland. In the U.S., just 42% of farms are under 50 

acres in size, and their share of farmland is only 2%. 

In the U.S., the 4% of farms over 2,000 acres manage 

55% of farmland. In the EU, the top 3% of farms over 

250 acres manage 53% of farmland. A greater share 

of land is rented in the EU (55%) compared to in the 

U.S. (39%).

One consequence of these differences is that EU 

agriculture produces a higher value per acre than U.S. 

farming, on average USD 1,050 per acre compared 

to USD 465 per acre in the U.S. However, because of 

the much larger farm sizes in the U.S. the ranking is 

reversed in terms of the value of output per farm, 

where the U.S. figure is USD 181,385 compared to the 

EU figure of USD 40,680.

TaBle 5

Comparison of U.S. (2017) and EU (2016) farm structures

UTILIZED AGRICULTURAL LAND

U.S.

797
million acres 

EU

387
million acres 

NUMBER OF FARMS 

AVERAGE FARM SIZE 

U.S.

2.0
million

EU

41
acres

EU

10.3
million

U.S.

390
acres

Sources:   
USDA, Eurostat.

EUROPEAN UNION
UNITED STATES

SHARE OF FARMS  
SMALLER THAN 50 ACRES

SHARE OF FARMS  
LARGER THAN 50 ACRES

SHARE OF FARMLAND ON FARMS  
SMALLER THAN 50 ACRES

SHARE OF FARMLAND ON FARMS  
LARGER THAN 50 ACRES

42%

2%

58%

98%

94%

34%

6%

66%

AVERAGE VALUE OF OUTPUT

465

181,3851,049

40,680

PER ACRE (USD) PER FARM (USD)
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GLOBAL PLAYERS
The EU and the U.S. are major players in global agri-

food trade. The EU is the world’s largest agri-food 

exporter and the second largest agri-food importer, 

behind the U.S. (Figure 4).

Looking just at agricultural products, both regions 

have their particular strengths. The U.S. is the more 

important exporter for corn and oilseeds as well as 

chicken meat and beef. 

The EU is the more important exporter of dairy 

products (butter, cheese and whole milk powder), 

olive oil and wine. For other agricultural commodities 

(wheat, skimmed milk powder, pork), world market 

export shares are roughly similar (Figure 5).

EU-U.S. 
Agri-Food Trade

Figure 4

Top world agri-food exporters 
2018-2020

Top world agri-food importers
2018-2020

Source: DG AGRI.
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Age structure of farmers in U.S. (2017) and EU (2016 )

EUROPEAN UNION

UNITED STATES

40%

35%

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%
LESS THAN  

35 YEARS OLD
35-54 

YEARS OLD
55-64 

YEARS OLD
65 YEARS OLD 

OR MORE

Despite these differences in farm size and the larger 

farm structure in U.S. agriculture, farming in both 

regions faces the challenge of encouraging a sufficient 

number of new and younger entrants to offset the 

gradual aging of farm managers. In both regions, the 

proportion of farmers less than 35 years of age is 

less than 8%, while the share of farmers aged 65 and 

over is above 30% (Figure 3).

Sources:   
USDA, Eurostat.
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EU-U.S. BILATERAL 
TRADE FLOWS
The EU and U.S. are also major trading partners with 

each other. The U.S. is the second most important 

export market for EU agri-food exports, behind the 

United Kingdom, accounting for 12% of its total agri-

food exports in the period 2018-2020. 

The U.S. is the third most important source of imports 

for the EU, behind the United Kingdom and Brazil, 

and supplied 8% of total EU agri-food imports in 

2018-2020.

The EU supplied the U.S. 20% of its agri-food imports 

from 2018-2020, ranking the EU imports second in 

the U.S. behind Mexico. The EU was the destination for 

8% of U.S. agri-food exports, placing the EU behind 

top US export destinations Canada, Mexico, China and 

Japan. From 2005 to 2019, the U.S. imported more 

from the EU than it exported, and the EU trade surplus 

on agri-food trade has grown over time (Figure 6).

Figure 6

Figure 5

EU-U.S. agri-food trade flows
2005-2019

U.S. and EU world market export shares for agricultural products
2019

Source: USDA. 

Source: FAOSTAT.
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A final insight into the nature of agri-food trade 

between the two regions is highlighted by examining 

trade flows by class of processing. The USDA Foreign 

Agricultural Service breaks U.S. agricultural trade 

into three large categories—bulk, intermediate, and 

consumer-oriented (BICO) products, plus a fourth 

category of agriculture-related products (this covers 

distilled spirits, forest products, fish products, biodiesel 

and ethanol). This classification shows that the U.S. is 

a net exporter of bulk commodities to the EU, but a 

net importer in the other three categories. The U.S. net 

export balance in bulk commodities has been rather 

stable in recent years, while its net import deficit in 

the other three categories has been growing, and 

particularly in consumer-oriented products.

Figure 8

U.S. agri-food exports and imports with the EU  
by processing class
2017-2019

Source: USDA.
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Main U.S. agri-food exports to and imports from the EU
2019

Source: USDA. 

DAIRY PRODUCTS
VEGETABLES, FRESH & PROCESSED
COCOA, CHOCOLATE & CONFECTIONERY

TREE NUTS
CORN & CORN PRODUCTS
SOYBEANS & SOY PRODUCTS

COFFEE, TEA, SPICES & ESSENTIAL OILS
OTHER OILSEEDS & PRODUCTS
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26%

24%

5%

u.s. 
imporTs  
From eu

$30 
USD BILLION

u.s. 
eXporTs  

To eu

$11 
USD BILLION

38%

14% 19%

5%

5% 6%

3% 3%

12% 8%

6% 6%

14%

4% 4%

Based on 2019 trade figures, the EU’s main export to 

the U.S., accounting for 38% of the total, is alcoholic 

beverages (wines, spirits and beer). Processed food 

products and soft drinks make up a further 14%, 

followed by coffee and teas (12%), dairy products 

(mainly cheeses) (6%) and fresh and processed 

vegetables (5%). The most important U.S. export to 

the EU is tree nuts (26%), followed by soybeans (19%), 

alcoholic beverages (8%), processed food products 

(6%) and coffee and teas (6%) (Figure 7).



GREENHOUSE GAS 
EMISSIONS 
FROM AGRICULTURE
In both the U.S. and the EU, agricultural emissions 

account for 10.5% of territorial greenhouse gas 

(GHG) emissions. In the U.S., agricultural emissions 

have been increasing over time. In the EU, emissions 

have been falling, although they have stabilized in 

recent years (Figure 9). Agricultural emissions consist 

mainly of methane and nitrous oxide from enteric 

fermentation in ruminant animals, the application 

of fertilizer to agricultural soils, and manure 

management.

Sustainability 
in Agriculture

U.S. ORGANIC AREA   EU ORGANIC AREA
U.S. ORGANIC GROWERS   EU ORGANIC GROWERS

U.S.           EU
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The U.S. and the EU both support transitioning agriculture 

to more sustainable practices with a much lower carbon 

footprint and less environmental impact.

The USDA initiated its Agricultural Innovation Agenda in 

February 2020 with the overarching goal of increasing 

U.S. agricultural production by 40% through productivity 

improvements while cutting the environmental footprint 

of U.S. agriculture in half by 2050.

As part of the European Green Deal the European 

Commission published the EU’s Farm to Fork Strategy 

in May 2020. Key targets in the Farm to Fork Strategy 

include reducing greenhouse gas emissions and the 

use of fertilizer, pesticides and antimicrobials through 

better management as well as increasing the area under 

organic farming. Reinforced initiatives to combat food 

waste and to better inform consumers on their food 

through labelling are also proposed.

Note: 
Emissions are those reported in the Agriculture category 

in the UNFCCC inventories.

Sources:  U.S. EPA, EU EEA.

FigUrE 9

Figure 10

Trends in GHG emissions from agriculture
1990-2018

Trends in organic area and growers
2000-2019
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ORGANIC
AGRICULTURE
The organic sector is experiencing strong growth in 

both the U.S. and the EU but to date it is a much more 

important sector in the EU (Figure 10). Whereas less 

than 1% of U.S. farmland is managed on certified 

organic farms, the EU figure is 8.5%. Under the EU’s 

Farm to Fork Strategy, there is an ambitious target to 

increase this share to at least 25% by 2030.

Source: FiBL..
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U.S. EU

USE OF COVER CROPS
Planting a cover crop increases soil fertility, improves 

soil quality, reduces erosion, controls pests, and 

protects wildlife habitat. Farmers in both the U.S. and 

the EU have been increasing their planting of cover 

crops. The cropland area under cover crops increased 

by 50% in the U.S. between 2012 and 2017, excluding 

land in USDA’s Conservation Reserve Program. The 

increase in the EU was 39% between 2010 and 2016.

PESTICIDES
The use of chemicals in agriculture to combat weeds 

and pests can have environmental and public health 

risks that both the U.S. and EU seek to minimize, 

notably through the promotion of Integrated Pest 

Management (IPM). Based on sales data, U.S. pesticide 

sales have been increasing, while sales in the EU have 

begun to fall. In its Farm to Fork Strategy the EU now 

proposes to go further and to reduce the overall use 

and risk of chemical pesticides by 50% and the use of 

more hazardous pesticides by 50% by 2030 in the EU. 

This will be achieved by strengthening the use of IPM 

and encouraging the use of alternative control methods, 

such as crop rotation and mechanical weeding.

NUTRIENT
MANAGEMENT
Gross nitrogen surpluses have been falling in both 

the U.S. and the EU. (Figure 12). Excess nutrients can 

be leached from farm fields into waterways causing 

eutrophication of water bodies. Nitrogen can be 

volatized into the air as gaseous compounds such 

as ammonia or nitrous oxide, a powerful greenhouse 

gas. Improving nutrient management practices using 

precision agriculture, making use of cover crops, 

putting buffer strips in place along waterways, and 

implementing conservation tillage are some ways to 

improve nitrogen use efficiency.

Sources: USDA-NASS, Eurostat.

Note: Sales are based on active ingredients and do not necessarily reflect the toxicity and relative risk of different pesticides. Source: OECD.

Source: OECD.

Figure 11

Figure 13

Cropland planted to a cover crop

Trends in pesticide sales
2011-2018

Figure 12

Trends in gross nitrogen balance
2000-2017
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Note:
EPA data does not include food losses in the agricultural primary 
production sector.

Sources:  
U.S. EPA, EU FUSIONS project.
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HOUSEHOLDS

PRIMARY PRODUCTION

PROCESSING

WHOLESALE RETAIL
FOOD SERVICE

ANTIMICROBIAL 
RESISTANCE
Antimicrobial use in animals can contribute to the 

emergence of antimicrobial resistance in bacteria 

that may be transferred to humans, thereby reducing 

the effectiveness of antimicrobial drugs for treating 

human disease.

Both in the EU and in the U.S., steps are being taken 

to minimize these risks. There is evidence that use in 

both regions is beginning to fall (Figure 14). The EU 

banned the use of antibiotics as growth promoters in 

animal feed starting in 2006. The EU’s objective in the 

Farm to Fork Strategy is the reduction by 50% of the 

overall EU sales of antimicrobials for farmed animals 

and in aquaculture by 2030.

FOOD WASTE
Reducing food waste can provide wholesome food 

to benefit families in need, prevent waste of the 

resources of land, water, labor, energy and other 

inputs, and avoid generating greenhouse gases from 

food rotting in landfills. In the U.S., food waste is 

estimated at between 30-40% of the food supply. 

In the EU, the estimate is that 20% of the total food 

produced is wasted. Both the EU and the U.S. have set 

goals to cut food waste by 50% by 2030.

Note: 
Sales figures are not necessarily the same as actual usage.  

A comparison between absolute sales levels is not meaningful because 
of differences in the absolute numbers and composition of livestock,  

it is the trends that are important.  

Sources: 
U.S. FDA, EU EMA.

Figure 14

Trends in veterinary sales of antimicrobials 
2011-2019

u.s.
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eu
(2016)

Figure 15

Sources of food waste
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TABLE 1A. Agricultural land: USDA-NASS 

Agricultural Census 2017 available at https://

www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/

Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_1_US/. The US 

Census value for ‘Land in farms’ has been converted 

to Utilised Agricultural Area for better comparison 

with the EU figure by deducting woodlands and 

areas used for farmsteads and facilities; Eurostat, 

Utilised agricultural area by categories [tag00025] 

available at https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/

databrowser/view/tag00025/default/table?lang=en.

TABLE 1B. Values of production: USDA-ERS, 

Annual Cash Sales by Commodity, https://data.

ers.usda.gov/reports.aspx?ID=17832; Eurostat, 

Economic accounts for agriculture - values at current 

prices [aact_eaa01], available at https://appsso.

eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=aact_

eaa01&lang=en converted to USD at the annual 

average Euro/USD exchange rate in each year.

TABLE 2. U.S. cropland area and production data 

from USDA-NASS Crop Production Annual Summary 

2020, available at https://usda.library.cornell.edu/

concern/publications/k3569432s?locale=en; EU 

data from European Commission, EU Short-term 

Outlook for Agricultural Markets, Spring 2021 edition 

available at https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-

fisheries/farming/facts-and-figures/markets/outlook/

short-term_en; Supplementary U.S. data for total 

cropland area from USDA-ERS Major Land Uses 

available at https://www.ers.usda.gov/data-products/

major-land-uses/; for wine from OIV, 2019 Statistical 

Report on World Vitiviniculture, https://www.oiv.int/

public/medias/6782/oiv-2019-statistical-report-

on-world-vitiviniculture.pdf; for vegetables from 

USDA, Vegetables and Pulses Outlook, April 2021, 

available at https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/

usda-esmis/files/cj82k729x/vd66wv365/v118s8941/

VGS366.pdf; for fruits and nuts from USDA, Fruit and 

Tree Nuts Yearbook Tables, Table A-2 available at 

https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/

files/cj82k729x/vd66wv365/v118s8941/VGS366.pdf; 

and for almonds from FAOSTAT, Production – Crops, 

available at http://www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data/

QC. Supplementary EU data from Eurostat, Crop 

production in EU standard humidity [apro_cpsh1] 

available at https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/

nui/show.do?dataset=apro_cpsh1&lang=en.

TABLE 3. U.S. cattle numbers from USDA-NASS, 

Cattle Inventory Survey 29 Jan 2021, available at 

https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/

files/h702q636h/n009ww19g/9880wj45t/catl0121.

pdf; hog numbers from USDA-NASS, Quarterly 

Hogs and Pigs Inventory, 25 March 2021 available 

at  https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/Todays_

Reports/reports/hgpg1220.pdf; sheep numbers from 

USDA-NASS, Sheep and Goats Inventory, 29 Jan 2021 

available at https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/

usda-esmis/files/000000018/41688945h/f47539332/

shep0121.pdf; broiler numbers from USDA-NASS, 

Poultry - Production and Value – 2020 Summary, 

April 2021, available at https://www.nass.usda.gov/

Publications/Todays_Reports/reports/plva0421.pdf; 

production data from PS&D database except for 

sheepmeat, which is taken from USDA-NASS Quick 

Stats, available at https://quickstats.nass.usda.gov/

results/BBCB2FD9-7138-3A9C-899A-95F9599C1AF0. 

EU inventory and production data from European 

Commission, EU Short-term Outlook for Agricultural 

Markets, Spring 2021 edition available at https://

ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/farming/

facts-and-figures/markets/outlook/short-term_en

with broiler numbers taken from FAOSTAT, 

Production – Primary Livestock, available at 

http://www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data/QL.

TABLE 4. USDA, PS&D Online, available at https://

apps.fas.usda.gov/psdonline/app/index.html#/app/

advQuery; U.S. wine data from OIV, 2019 Statistical 

Report on World Vitiviniculture, https://www.oiv.int/

public/medias/6782/oiv-2019-statistical-report-on-

world-vitiviniculture.pdf;  EU data from European 

Commission, EU Short-term Outlook for Agricultural 

Markets, Spring 2021 edition available at https://

ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/farming/

facts-and-figures/markets/outlook/short-term_en. 

Additional EU data for rice and wine from European 

Commission, Medium Term  Outlook for Markets and 

Income, Dec 2020 available at https://ec.europa.eu/

info/sites/default/files/food-farming-fisheries/farming/

documents/medium-term-outlook-tables_en.xlsx.

FIGURE 1. USDA-ERS, Farm Income and 

Wealth Statistics, https://data.ers.usda.gov/reports.

aspx?ID=17830; Eurostat, Economic accounts for 

agriculture - values at current prices [aact_eaa01], 

available at https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/

nui/show.do?dataset=aact_eaa01&lang=en.

FIGURE 2. OECD, Producer Support Estimate 

database, available at https://www.oecd.org/eu/

producerandconsumersupportestimatesdatabase.htm.

FIGURE 2A. OECD, Producer Support Estimate 

database, available at https://www.oecd.org/eu/

producerandconsumersupportestimatesdatabase.htm.

TABLE 5. USDA-NASS, Agricultural Census 

2017 available at https://www.nass.usda.

gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/Full_Report/

Volume_1,_Chapter_1_US/; Eurostat, Farm indicators 

by agricultural area, type of farm, standard output, 

legal form and NUTS 2 regions [ef_m_farmleg], 

available at https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/

nui/show.do?dataset=ef_m_farmleg&lang=en.

Data
Sources

https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_1_US/
https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_1_US/
https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_1_US/
https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/databrowser/view/tag00025/default/table?lang=en
https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/databrowser/view/tag00025/default/table?lang=en
https://data.ers.usda.gov/reports.aspx?ID=17832
https://data.ers.usda.gov/reports.aspx?ID=17832
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=aact_eaa01&lang=en
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=aact_eaa01&lang=en
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=aact_eaa01&lang=en
https://usda.library.cornell.edu/concern/publications/k3569432s?locale=en
https://usda.library.cornell.edu/concern/publications/k3569432s?locale=en
https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/farming/facts-and-figures/markets/outlook/short-term_en
https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/farming/facts-and-figures/markets/outlook/short-term_en
https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/farming/facts-and-figures/markets/outlook/short-term_en
https://www.ers.usda.gov/data-products/major-land-uses/
https://www.ers.usda.gov/data-products/major-land-uses/
https://www.oiv.int/public/medias/6782/oiv-2019-statistical-report-on-world-vitiviniculture.pdf
https://www.oiv.int/public/medias/6782/oiv-2019-statistical-report-on-world-vitiviniculture.pdf
https://www.oiv.int/public/medias/6782/oiv-2019-statistical-report-on-world-vitiviniculture.pdf
https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/files/cj82k729x/vd66wv365/v118s8941/VGS366.pdf
https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/files/cj82k729x/vd66wv365/v118s8941/VGS366.pdf
https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/files/cj82k729x/vd66wv365/v118s8941/VGS366.pdf
https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/files/cj82k729x/vd66wv365/v118s8941/VGS366.pdf
https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/files/cj82k729x/vd66wv365/v118s8941/VGS366.pdf
http://www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data/QC
http://www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data/QC
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=apro_cpsh1&lang=en
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=apro_cpsh1&lang=en
https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/files/h702q636h/n009ww19g/9880wj45t/catl0121.pdf
https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/files/h702q636h/n009ww19g/9880wj45t/catl0121.pdf
https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/files/h702q636h/n009ww19g/9880wj45t/catl0121.pdf
https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/Todays_Reports/reports/hgpg1220.pdf
https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/Todays_Reports/reports/hgpg1220.pdf
https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/files/000000018/41688945h/f47539332/shep0121.pdf
https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/files/000000018/41688945h/f47539332/shep0121.pdf
https://downloads.usda.library.cornell.edu/usda-esmis/files/000000018/41688945h/f47539332/shep0121.pdf
https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/Todays_Reports/reports/plva0421.pdf
https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/Todays_Reports/reports/plva0421.pdf
https://quickstats.nass.usda.gov/results/BBCB2FD9-7138-3A9C-899A-95F9599C1AF0
https://quickstats.nass.usda.gov/results/BBCB2FD9-7138-3A9C-899A-95F9599C1AF0
https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/farming/facts-and-figures/markets/outlook/short-term_en
https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/farming/facts-and-figures/markets/outlook/short-term_en
https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/farming/facts-and-figures/markets/outlook/short-term_en
http://www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data/QL
https://apps.fas.usda.gov/psdonline/app/index.html#/app/advQuery
https://apps.fas.usda.gov/psdonline/app/index.html#/app/advQuery
https://apps.fas.usda.gov/psdonline/app/index.html#/app/advQuery
https://www.oiv.int/public/medias/6782/oiv-2019-statistical-report-on-world-vitiviniculture.pdf
https://www.oiv.int/public/medias/6782/oiv-2019-statistical-report-on-world-vitiviniculture.pdf
https://www.oiv.int/public/medias/6782/oiv-2019-statistical-report-on-world-vitiviniculture.pdf
https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/farming/facts-and-figures/markets/outlook/short-term_en
https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/farming/facts-and-figures/markets/outlook/short-term_en
https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/farming/facts-and-figures/markets/outlook/short-term_en
https://ec.europa.eu/info/sites/default/files/food-farming-fisheries/farming/documents/medium-term-outlook-tables_en.xlsx
https://ec.europa.eu/info/sites/default/files/food-farming-fisheries/farming/documents/medium-term-outlook-tables_en.xlsx
https://ec.europa.eu/info/sites/default/files/food-farming-fisheries/farming/documents/medium-term-outlook-tables_en.xlsx
https://data.ers.usda.gov/reports.aspx?ID=17830
https://data.ers.usda.gov/reports.aspx?ID=17830
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=aact_eaa01&lang=en
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=aact_eaa01&lang=en
https://www.oecd.org/eu/producerandconsumersupportestimatesdatabase.htm
https://www.oecd.org/eu/producerandconsumersupportestimatesdatabase.htm
https://www.oecd.org/eu/producerandconsumersupportestimatesdatabase.htm
https://www.oecd.org/eu/producerandconsumersupportestimatesdatabase.htm
https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_1_US/
https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_1_US/
https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_1_US/
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=ef_m_farmleg&lang=en
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=ef_m_farmleg&lang=en
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FIGURE 3. USDA-NASS Agricultural Census 

2017, Table 71 available at https://www.nass.

usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/Full_Report/

Volume_1,_Chapter_1_US/; Eurostat, Farm 

indicators by agricultural area, type of farm, 

standard output, sex and age of the manager 

and NUTS 2 regions [ef_m_farmang] available 

at https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/

show.do?dataset=ef_m_farmang&lang=en.

FIGURE 4. European Commission Directorate-

General for Agriculture and Rural Development.  

https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/

trade/trade-and-international-policy-analysis_en.

Note: The considered agri-food products are based on the WTO 
definition of agricultural products that includes the chapters 1-24 
(excluding fish and fish products) of the Harmonised System, and a 
number of headings in chapters 29, 33, 35, 38, 41, 43 and 50-53. 
Extractions were done on 7 June 2021 from the GTA database on 
6 digit. This allows for a reliable comparison between the US and 
the EU. There is a slight difference with the EU agri-food trade data 
which are extracted on the basis of Eurostat (COMEXT database). In 
these extractions, DG AGRI excludes some odoriferous substances 
which are regarded as industrial products. These products are 
identified only at 8 digit – a level of detail not available in the GTA.

FIGURE 5. USDA, Production, Supply and 

Distribution (PSD) database, available at https://apps.

fas.usda.gov/psdonline/app/index.html#/app/home.

FIGURE 6. For global trade, FAOSTAT, Trade 

Crop and Livestock Products, available at http://

www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data/TP; for U.S. and EU 

data, FAOSTAT, Detailed Trade Matrix, available 

at http://www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data/TM.

FIGURE 7. USDA, Global Agricultural 

Trade System, available at https://apps.fas.

usda.gov/gats/AdvancedQuery.aspx. 

FIGURE 8. USDA, Global Agricultural 

Trade System, available at https://apps.fas.

usda.gov/gats/AdvancedQuery.aspx.

FIGURE 9. U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency, Greenhouse Gas Inventory Data Explorer, 

available at https://cfpub.epa.gov/ghgdata/

inventoryexplorer/#agriculture/entiresector/

select/select/all; European Environment Agency, 

Greenhouse Gas Data Viewer, available at 

https://www.eea.europa.eu/data-and-maps/data/

data-viewers/greenhouse-gases-viewer.

FIGURE 10. FiBL, World of Organic 

Agriculture, Interactive Online Database, 

available at https://statistics.fibl.org/data.html.

 

FIGURE 11. USDA-NASS, 2017 Agricultural 

Census, Table 47, available at https://bit.ly/2KnAMgo; 

Eurostat, Soil cover by NUTS2 regions [ef_mp_soil], 

available at https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/

nui/show.do?dataset=ef_mp_soil&lang=en.

FIGURE 12. U.S. data from OECD, Agri-

Environment Indicators: Nutrients available at https://

stats.oecd.org/Index.aspx?QueryId=79764&lang=en#; 

EU data from Eurostat, Gross nutrient balance [aei_

pr_gnb], available at https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.

eu/nui/show.do?dataset=aei_pr_gnb&lang=en.

FIGURE 13. OECD, Agri-environment Indicators 

- Pesticide Sales, available at https://stats.oecd.

org/Index.aspx?QueryId=76866&lang=en#.

FIGURE 14. U.S. Food and Drug Administration, 

2019 Summary Report on Antimicrobials Sold or 

Distributed for Use in Food-Producing Animals, 

available at https://www.fda.gov/animal-veterinary/

cvm-updates/fda-releases-annual-summary-report-

antimicrobials-sold-or-distributed-2019-use-food-

producing; European Medicines Agency, European 

Database of Sales of Veterinary Antimicrobial 

Agents, available at https://esvacbi.ema.europa.eu/

analytics/saw.dll?PortalPages&PortalPath=/shared/

ESVAC%20Public/_portal/Annual%20Report.

FIGURE 15. Environment Protection Agency,  

Wasted Food Report 2018, Table 4, available at 

https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2020-11/

documents/2018_wasted_food_report.pdf; 

EU data from FUSIONS report, Estimates of 

European food waste levels, Table 1 and Figure 

1, available at http://www.eu-fusions.org/

phocadownload/Publications/Estimates%20of%20

European%20food%20waste%20levels.pdf.

https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_1_US/
https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_1_US/
https://www.nass.usda.gov/Publications/AgCensus/2017/Full_Report/Volume_1,_Chapter_1_US/
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=ef_m_farmang&lang=en
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=ef_m_farmang&lang=en
https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/trade/trade-and-international-policy-analysis_en
https://ec.europa.eu/info/food-farming-fisheries/trade/trade-and-international-policy-analysis_en
https://apps.fas.usda.gov/psdonline/app/index.html#/app/home
https://apps.fas.usda.gov/psdonline/app/index.html#/app/home
http://www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data/TP
http://www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data/TP
https://apps.fas.usda.gov/gats/AdvancedQuery.aspx
https://apps.fas.usda.gov/gats/AdvancedQuery.aspx
https://apps.fas.usda.gov/gats/AdvancedQuery.aspx
https://apps.fas.usda.gov/gats/AdvancedQuery.aspx
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https://cfpub.epa.gov/ghgdata/inventoryexplorer/#agriculture/entiresector/select/select/all
https://cfpub.epa.gov/ghgdata/inventoryexplorer/#agriculture/entiresector/select/select/all
https://www.eea.europa.eu/data-and-maps/data/data-viewers/greenhouse-gases-viewer
https://www.eea.europa.eu/data-and-maps/data/data-viewers/greenhouse-gases-viewer
https://statistics.fibl.org/data.html
https://bit.ly/2KnAMgo
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=ef_mp_soil&lang=en
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=ef_mp_soil&lang=en
https://stats.oecd.org/Index.aspx?QueryId=79764&lang=en
https://stats.oecd.org/Index.aspx?QueryId=79764&lang=en
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=aei_pr_gnb&lang=en
https://appsso.eurostat.ec.europa.eu/nui/show.do?dataset=aei_pr_gnb&lang=en
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